Date: March 26, 2025

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

CIVIL MINUTES – GENERAL

Case No. 2:20-cv-02291-DOC-KES

Title: LA Alliance for Human Rights et al. v. City of Los Angeles et al.

PRESENT:

THE HONORABLE DAVID O. CARTER, JUDGE

Karlen Dubon Courtroom Clerk

Not Present Court Reporter

ATTORNEYS PRESENT FOR PLAINTIFF: None Present

ATTORNEYS PRESENT FOR **DEFENDANT:** None Present

PROCEEDINGS (IN CHAMBERS): ORDER RE LAHSA RESPONSE AND DOCUMENTATION

On March 24, 2025, the Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority ("LAHSA") emailed the following documents to the Court: (1) LAHSA's Response to the A&M Assessment; (2) LAHSA's Update on Measure H Recoupment with two spreadsheets related to Measure H Recoupment (one spreadsheet with recent updates and one spreadsheet with full details on recoupment). In the interest of transparency, the Court attaches the submitted documents to this Order as Exhibit A.

The Clerk shall serve this minute order on the parties.

MINUTES FORM 11

Initials of Deputy Clerk: kdu

CIVIL-GEN

Exhibit A

707 Wilshire Blvd. 10th Floor Los Angeles, CA 90017 213 683.3333 www.lahsa.org

March 24, 2025

The Honorable David O. Carter **United States District Court** Central District of California 411 West Fourth Street, Courtroom 10A Santa Ana, CA 92701 David Carter@cacd.uscourts.gov DOC Chambers@cacd.uscourts.gov Via Email

Re: Response to Second Amended Draft of the Alvarez & Marsal Assessment of City of Los Angeles Homelessness Programs, Case No. 2:20-cv-02291-DOC-KES, Document No. 870

#:24406

Dear Judge Carter,

On behalf of the Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority (LAHSA), we appreciate the opportunity to respond to the Alvarez & Marsal (A&M) Independent Assessment of City-Funded Homelessness Assistance Programs, as outlined in Docket Number 870, filed on March 6, 2025. We recognize and support the Court's commitment to transparency, accountability, and operational efficiency in addressing homelessness and share these priorities.

Since 2023, LAHSA has implemented targeted reforms to enhance financial oversight, data management, and service provider compliance and performance.

These reforms directly address many of the issues raised in the A&M report, which is based on financial and performance data from the Roadmap – Freeway Agreement, Alliance Program, and Inside Safe Program during the Lookback Period (June 1, 2020 – June 30, 2024). Given LAHSA's implementation began in 2023, the full impact of these measures is not yet reflected in A&M's analysis.

Below are LAHSA's responses to A&M's key findings and the reforms undertaken to address their recommendations:

I. Poor Data Quality and Integration

A&M's report identified multiple siloed referral processes, disparate data systems, and inconsistent prioritization and matching criteria, all of which hinder the establishment of a unified Coordinated Entry System (CES). Additionally, the report highlights fragmentation in data systems between LAHSA, the City, and the County, impacting financial and service coordination.

LAHSA agrees that there is a need for more coordinated processes across the system and a centralized database and has continually advocated for its implementation. This issue extends beyond LAHSA's sole control. However, LAHSA has taken significant steps to enhance coordination and data sharing with the City and County. Although the establishment of a fully

#:24407

unified data system remains a challenge, LAHSA has implemented corrective measures to streamline matching policies and prioritization frameworks. This includes regular meetings with the Department of Health Services (DHS) to align California Health Access Model Program (CHAMP) data standards with LAHSA's Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) to enable better platform integration, and weekly transfers of all HMIS data to the County's Chief Information Officer to improve system-wide coordination.

II. Quantification of Funding for City Programs

The report states that A&M identified approximately \$2.3 billion in funding related to City programs across the Lookback Period. The document also states that the City and LAHSA were unable to identify and calculate all relevant expenses for City Programs. This is in part due to how the City recorded its expenditures and the complex nature of LAHSA's utilization of braided funding from its various funders.

The inability to quantify the total amount of City funding is further compounded by A&M's characterization of the "Roadmap Program" as a structured initiative. LAHSA respectfully disagrees with this characterization. During interviews conducted with A&M on or around September 9 and 16, 2025, LAHSA clarified that the Roadmap was a legal agreement focused on the creation of additional shelter beds, rather than a comprehensive homeless services delivery program. Service expectations and funding levels varied across sites with some facilities offering wraparound services, while others operated as minimal-support shelters. LAHSA is standardizing, enhancing, and integrating Roadmap beds into the new Scope of Services rolling out with the re-procurement process for July 2025.

III. Disjointed Continuum-of-Care System

LAHSA agrees that the current Continuum-of-Care (CoC) structure is fragmented and requires reform, as was noted in a 2021 report ¹commissioned by LAHSA's Ad Hoc Committee on Governance and written by Ann Oliva, who is now the President of the National Alliance to End Homelessness. This report emphasized the need for clearer roles and responsibilities among LAHSA, the County, and the City. Given the variety of funding sources, mandates, and varying priorities, this fragmentation in the system is not unique to LAHSA but rather a result of broader systemic challenges in coordinating services across multiple jurisdictions and funders. As the lead agency, LAHSA administers the Coordinated Entry System, and works with local governments to establish program requirements and participant prioritization policies. However, varying mandates from different funders contribute to the system's disjointed nature. A&M claimed that LAHSA lacked a standardized prioritization policy for its Interim Housing (IH) matching during the Lookback Period. However, LAHSA does have a prioritization policy² for interim housing placements at LAHSA-funded interim housing facilities. Discrepancies emerged as the City rapidly expanded shelter programs, including A Bridge Home (ABH) and Roadmap shelters, which followed different prioritization frameworks based on various funding and contractual obligations.

To address these inconsistencies, LAHSA has collaborated with City and County partners to align prioritization standards across all IH programs, ensuring service providers receive enhanced training on prioritization protocols and eligibility criteria. Further improvements include implementing a centralized, real-time bed tracking and prioritization system. The Bed Inventory Module, set for full implementation by July 2025, will automate the matching process and integrate real-time availability tracking within the Homeless Management Information

System (HMIS). This system is designed to improve transparency and efficiency in shelter placements, reducing delays and increasing accessibility for those in need.

In the area of Permanent Housing (PH) and Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH), A&M identified challenges with fragmented referral processes and disparate data systems, resulting in a lack of transparency and inequities in service prioritization. LAHSA has taken steps to address these concerns by developing a unified Matching and Prioritization Guideline, approved by the CES Policy Council, to establish clear, data-driven procedures for PSH referrals. This publicly available guideline improves transparency and consistency, with discussions held in public forums to ensure accountability. Additionally, the enhanced Community Queue (CQ) now serves as the central data hub for PSH placements, integrating information from HMIS, DHS, and DMH to ensure all eligible individuals are considered. Further technological upgrades, including an improved HMIS interface and real-time tracking tools will streamline the PSH matching process, enhance service placements, and improve bed availability monitoring.

IV. Limited Financial Oversight and Performance Monitoring:

A&M raised concerns about invoicing inefficiencies, prolonged budget amendments, and inadequate invoice validation. LAHSA agrees that there is a need for enhanced financial oversight and transparency. However, LAHSA emphasizes the distinction between invoice processing and performance monitoring: the former ensures financial accuracy and compliance, while the latter focuses on service outcomes and contractual obligations. To improve accountability, LAHSA has standardized invoice submission through the Enterprise Grants Management System (EGMS) for service providers and Microix for non-service providers. Additionally, LAHSA refined documentation and reporting requirements to mandate detailed, itemized invoices with clear supporting documentation. A risk-based approach is employed for billing reviews, prioritizing higher-risk transactions for deeper scrutiny while ensuring compliance across all invoices.

A&M recommends real-time expenditure monitoring and uniform compliance standards. LAHSA agrees and has improved contract management by conducting monthly expenditure and performance reviews. These reviews track fund utilization, assess progress toward Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), and enable proactive interventions to enhance fiscal management and service delivery. LAHSA has also standardized compliance frameworks to ensure consistent financial reporting and timely expenditure submissions from service providers. Inter-agency coordination with City and County partners has been improved, though challenges remain due to external approval processes requiring multiple agency approvals. LAHSA expanded monitoring with routine spot-checks for invoice accuracy and adherence to funding restrictions, implementing corrective actions as needed. Ongoing training initiatives provide guidance to service providers for proper invoice submission, financial tracking, and compliance. LAHSA's use of dashboards to monitor fiscal and programmatic processes enhances accountability, transparency, and continuous improvement in fiscal oversight and service delivery.

V. Lack of Contractual Clarity and Accountability:

The report notes that contracts lacked clear definitions and accountability measures, leading to ambiguity in service delivery. This has historically been a challenge throughout the system.

Over the last two years, LAHSA has taken proactive steps to improve contract Page 3 of 6

monitoring and compliance. LAHSA believes the details of this finding are somewhat mistaken, particularly regarding required services and spend-down of grant allocations.

The report cites the wide scope of allowable services. Each contract includes a Scope of Required Services (SRS) document, which clearly defines expectations, performance measures, and service delivery requirements. These documents are shared with service providers and program teams and made publicly accessible in LAHSA's document library to ensure transparency and accountability. The report notes different service types such as "Residential Supervision" and the perceived ambiguity of how allowable costs for supportive services intersect with the conditions of direct supportive services. Although these terms may not be common language for people not providing services within the homeless services system, these terms relate to specific tasks and services highlighted in LAHSA's SRS.

The report cites that due to lack of clarity in allowable services, service providers are granted discretion in allocating funds for services. Service providers operate under structured budget guidelines, with allowable fund allocations clearly defined based on the SRS and funding restrictions. Providers have some flexibility in managing costs within established budget categories but must adhere to strict expenditure requirements. For non-HUD CoC contracts, providers have discretion in budget allocation as long as expenses remain compliant with grant guidelines. In contrast, HUD CoC programs require rigid allocations, ensuring that funding is directed precisely as designated by the grant.

LAHSA has refined its reporting structures, standardizing contract management processes to ensure providers submit consistent and detailed expenditure reports. In Fall 2024, LAHSA strengthened contract oversight and performance management by implementing Active Contract Management (ACM) and Active System Management (ASM) to ensure ongoing, monthly performance tracking, financial accountability, and compliance monitoring. LAHSA is actively working with providers to scale ACM and ASM to the entire system.

VI. Cost and Service Variability:

A&M highlights variability in program costs and service provider performance. LAHSA agrees but emphasizes some key clarifications in monitoring expenses and outcomes. Service provider billing validation is distinct from performance reviews: billing ensures compliance with financial guidelines, while performance reviews focus on participant outcomes and service impact.

Operational models vary significantly between providers, impacting cost structures. Differences in staffing, security contracts, food services, and lease agreements contribute to cost discrepancies.

The A&M analysis does not account for economies of scale, which can distort cost-effectiveness comparisons. Larger providers may benefit from cost-sharing across multiple programs, while smaller providers may have higher per-unit costs. Geographic factors also significantly influence costs. Providers in high-rent areas face higher leasing, utility, and personnel expenses compared to those in lower-cost regions. Service models differ based on the needs of the population served. Providers supporting individuals with higher acuity levels require enhanced staffing, medical care, and intensive case management, increasing operational costs. Inconsistent funding allocations and contractual obligations contribute to cost disparities. Some providers receive private or philanthropic funding, allowing for expanded services, while others operate solely on public funding.

LAHSA has improved its monitoring of outcomes through ACM, ASM, and the implementation of its data dashboards. The report states, "a high percentage of document-ready participants or prolonged stays did not appear to result in higher permanent housing placements." LAHSA respectfully disagrees with this claim, noting that there is a demonstrated correlation between longer interim housing stays, increased document readiness, and improved housing placement outcomes. From 2023 to 2024, there was a 29% increase in permanent housing placements from interim housing, indicating positive progress in this area.³

VII. Reconciliation of Spending:

The report notes that the lack of reconciliation in the City's fiscal reporting between budget allocations and actual spending caused confusion about the total amount spent on homelessness services. A&M recommends linking contract renewals and funding allocations to measurable outcomes.

LAHSA agrees and has implemented an improved outcome-monitoring system in a myriad of ways. This includes updated and enhanced contractual KPIs and joint monthly monitoring of contractual performance and spenddown. LAHSA has incorporated enhanced data-driven decision-making, utilizing system data dashboards to track funding effectiveness and optimize resource allocation. LAHSA also advocates for more performance-based funding models, where contracts and funding allocations are increasingly tied to demonstrated program success and adherence to contract requirements. LAHSA has implemented standardized reporting frameworks, ensuring consistent documentation of outcomes, expenditures, and provider performance to enable informed policy decisions. Collaboration with funders is critical to align funding priorities with data-driven insights, ensuring resources are directed toward the most impactful and sustainable interventions.

Conclusion

As Chief Executive Officer of LAHSA, I want to reaffirm LAHSA's unwavering commitment to transparency, accountability, and operational excellence in our mission to addres homelessness in Los Angeles. Since stepping into this role, I have prioritized strengthening financial oversight, improving data accuracy, and enhancing service provider accountability to ensure that public resources are managed responsibly and distributed equitably to those most in need.

The challenges outlined in the report are not taken lightly. We had identified many of them previously and have taken decisive, measurable actions to reinforce fiscal integrity, streamline service coordination, and improve housing placement efficiency by integrating performance-based funding models, refining compliance & monitoring systems, prioritizing real-time data tracking, ensuring services are delivered efficiently, and outcomes are demonstrable.

Homelessness is a complex crisis that requires a collaborative, multi-agency response. I strongly agree with the A&M recommendation for a unified homeless strategy and funding priorities across the City and County of Los Angeles. No single entity can solve this challenge alone. I urge our City and County partners, service providers, and community stakeholders to remain engaged in aligning policies, eliminating inefficiencies, and investing in sustainable housing solutions. Only through coordinated, data-driven decision-making and shared accountability can we enact meaningful, systemic changes.

Page 5 of 6

I respectfully request that the Court recognize the substantial progress achieved and support our ongoing efforts to build a more effective, accountable, and transparent homeless services system. I welcome continued engagement and remain committed to demonstrating our dedication to fiscal responsibility, service excellence, and providing real housing solutions for those experiencing homelessness.

#:24411

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Sincerely,

Va Recia Cedans Kellum Dr. Va Lecia Adams Kellum Chief Executive Officer

Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority

Cc:

Michele Martinez, michele@michelecmartinez.com Lana Gesinsky, lgesinsky@alvarezandmarsal.com Diane Rafferty, <u>drafferty@alvarezandmarsal.com</u> Lisa Brown, lisa.brown@alvarezandmarsal.com Scott McKee, smckee@alvarezandmarsal.com Dave McCurley, dmccurley@alvarezandmarsal.com Laura Collier, lcollier@alvarezandmarsal.com Jessica Mariani, jessica.mariani@lacity.org Arlene Hoang, arlene.hoang@lacity.org Louis R. Miller, smiller@millerbarondess.com Mira Hashmall, mhashmall@millerbarondess.com Jason H. Tokoro, jtokoro@millerbarondess.com Dr. Holly Henderson, hhenderson@lahsa.org Bevin Kuhn, bkuhn@lahsa.org Dae (Dan) Kim, dkim@counsel.lacounty.gov Erin Dunkerly, edunkerly@ccllp.law Chandler Parker, cparker@ccllp.law

707 Wilshire Blvd. 10th Floor Los Angeles, CA 90017 213 683.3333 www.lahsa.org

March 24, 2025

The Honorable David O. Carter U.S. Courthouse 350 W. 1st Street Los Angeles, California 90012

Subject: March 2025 Update on Recoupment of Measure H Working Capital Advances

Dear Judge Carter,

This letter provides an update on LAHSA's recoupment of Measure H Working Capital Advances since our last update to the Court on January 7, 2025. Attached is a spreadsheet detailing the status of each organization's advance balance and their most recent payments.

#:24412

As noted in previous updates, the advances were intended to support Measure H start-up costs and ongoing cashflow needs for service providers. These advances were always meant to be recouped at the conclusion of Measure H, which was originally in 2027. Consistent with this understanding, as of the date of this letter, the County, as the funder, has not sought recoupment of these funds, nor instructed LAHSA to do so.

LAHSA's previous letters to the Court outlined the following progress:

November 26, 2024: LAHSA reported \$2.5 million had been recouped at the time of the County's audit, and \$3.8 million was recouped as of November 21, 2024, bringing the total recoupments to \$6.3 million.

January 6, 2025: LAHSA reported an additional \$7.2 million recouped between November 22, 2024 and December 31, 2024, bringing total to \$13.5 million and reducing the outstanding advance balance to \$37.3 million.

Further Progress on Recoupment

- January 1, 2025, and January 29, 2025: LAHSA recouped an additional \$263,628.
- January 30, 2025, and March 4, 2025: LAHSA recouped an additional \$20,775.

As of the date of this letter, total recoupments are \$13,780,961 million, reducing the outstanding advance balance to \$37,010,267.

While the recoupment rate has slowed since our last update, this was designed to offer service providers the financial flexibility needed to maintain their operational cash flows.

LAHSA's Plan for Continued Recoupment

LAHSA remains committed to fully recouping all Measure H Working Capital advances by June 30, 2027, the originally established end date for the Measure H grant term, or by an adjusted timeline to be determined in collaboration with LA County, if instructed by the County.

As detailed in our November 26, 2024 letter and its attachments in Docket Number 833, LAHSA sent payment plan proposals to the providers in November and December 2023, with most providers returning signed agreements to repay their Measure H advances.

For the service providers that have not signed their repayment notice, LASHA will recoup up to the invoiced amount and issue an AP credit memo moving forward. These service providers may engage with LAHSA to discuss repayment terms.

LAHSA remains committed to ensuring the successful recoupment of these advances, and we will continue to work diligently with our partners to meet this goal.

Sincerely,

Dr. Va Lecia Adams Kellum

Chief Executive Officer

Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority

Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority Measure H Working Capital Advances and Recoupment Status Through March 4, 2025; Target Deadline March 2027

Nc ~	Service Provider		tal Advances Issued s of 7/8/2024 (a)	Recouped date of advances in Column D	Letter Issued Date	Letter Returned by Provider	Date of additional Recoupment through FY23-24	Additional Recoupment amount 11/21/24 (d)	Date of additional Recoupment through 12/31/24	Additional Recoupment amount since 11/21/24 as of 12/31/24 (e)	Date of additional Recoupment through 1/29/25	Additional Recoupment amount since 12/31/24 as of 1/29/25 (f)	Date of additional Recoupment through 3/4/2025	Additional Recoupment amount since 1/29/24 as of 3/4/2025 (g)	Total Recoupment (x) = (b) + (d) + (e) +(f)+(g)	Advance Balance as of 3/4/2025
1	1736 Family Crisis Center	\$	914,593	7/16/2024	12/18/2023	1/5/2024	6/4/2024	97,637	10/5/2024	97,638	11/8/2024	\$ 24,409.00			\$ 279,950	\$ 634,643
2	211 LA County	\$	73,938	11/3/2021	N/A	N/A	N/A	-	N/A	-					\$ 73,938	\$ -
3	Coalition for Responsible Community Development	\$	268,421	N/A	12/15/2023	12/22/2024	6/12/2024	7,500	10/8/2024	60,000					\$ 67,500	\$ 200,921
4	Community Partners fbo Safe Place For Youth	\$	64,274	5/1/2024	12/18/2023	1/11/2024	8/21/2024	5,355	N/A	-					\$ 8,925	\$ 55,349
5	Covenant House California	\$	491,468	7/3/2024	12/15/2023	12/20/2023	8/21/2024	54,608	11/28/2024	68,260	12/16/2024	\$ 13,652.00			\$ 150,172	\$ 341,296
6	First to Serve	\$	755,528	N/A	12/18/2023	1/9/2024	7/16/2024	41,974	8/6/2024	41,974					\$ 83,948	\$ 671,580
7	Harbor Interfaith Services, Inc.	\$	2,229,945	6/30/2019	12/18/2023	1/29/2024	8/7/2024	308,346	N/A	-					\$ 318,949	\$ 1,910,996
8	Hathaway-Sycamores Child and Family Services	\$	1,128,937	N/A	12/15/2023	12/19/2023	6/21/2024	125,437	10/28/2024	162,740	12/2/2024	\$ 33,065.00			\$ 321,242	\$ 807,695
9	Home at Last Community Development Corporation	\$	797,681	N/A	12/18/2023	5/1/2024	N/A	-	N/A	-					\$ -	\$ 797,681
10	Homeless Health Care LA	\$	299,682	7/20/2024	1/11/2024	1/22/2024	N/A	-	N/A	-					\$ 5,344	\$ 294,338
11	Hope of the Valley Rescue Mission	\$	68,250	N/A	12/15/2023	1/9/2024	8/13/2024	11,375	10/28/2024	22,750					\$ 34,125	\$ 34,125
12	Jovenes, Inc.	\$	449,117	6/4/2024	12/18/2023	12/19/2024	6/21/2024	21,618	N/A	-					\$ 114,043	\$ 335,074
13	L.A. Family Housing Corporation	\$	6,373,401	12/16/2023	1/12/2024	1/16/2024	8/7/2024	1,240,954	N/A	-					\$ 1,870,761	\$ 4,502,640
14	National Health Foundation	\$	52,317	6/5/2024	12/18/2023	12/18/2023	N/A	-	N/A	-					\$ 52,317	\$ -
15	New Directions, Inc.	\$	34,347	N/A	12/18/2023	N/A	N/A	-	N/A	-					\$ -	\$ 34,347
16	People Assisting the Homeless	\$	8,274,239	N/A	12/20/2023	7/2/2024	N/A	-	N/A	-					\$ 40,581	\$ 8,233,658
17	Rainbow Services	\$	118,317	N/A	12/15/2023	1/24/2024	N/A	-	N/A	-					\$ -	\$ 118,317
18	Sanctuary of Hope	\$	344,884	3/20/2024	12/18/2023	1/19/2024	8/21/2024	28,412	11/18/2024	28,412					\$ 153,104	\$ 191,780
19	Special Services For Groups, Inc.	\$	6,674,335	4/23/2024	12/15/2023	1/10/2024	8/21/2024	306,982	12/11/2024	5,552,976					\$ 6,674,335	\$ -
20	St. Anne's Maternity Home	\$	326,067	2/13/2024	12/18/2023	1/28/2024	8/13/2024	32,444	N/A	-	1/6/2025	\$ 56,777.00			\$ 139,510	\$ 186,557
21	St. Joseph's Center	\$	2,930,300	5/15/2020	2/8/2024	2/28/2024	8/7/2024	156,128	8/9/2024	78,064					\$ 354,196	\$ 2,576,104
22	Testimonial Community Love Center	\$	388,684	N/A	1/11/2024	1/31/2024	N/A	-	N/A	-					\$ -	\$ 388,684
23	The Midnight Mission	\$	448,950	N/A	12/19/2023	N/A	N/A	-	N/A	-					\$ -	\$ 448,950
24	The People Concern	\$	3,812,087	N/A	12/18/2023	12/19/2023	N/A	-	N/A	-					\$ 49,389	\$ 3,762,698
25	The Village Family Services	\$	869,561	6/7/2024	12/15/2023	12/21/2023	8/21/2024	88,738	N/A	-					\$ 159,653	\$ 709,908
26	The Whole Child	\$	914,426	N/A	1/22/2024	1/23/2024	N/A	-	N/A	-			2/26/2025	\$ 20,775	\$ 20,775	\$ 893,651
27	Union Station Homeless Services	\$	2,035,055	2/12/2024	12/15/2023	12/22/2023	N/A	-	N/A	-					\$ 45,203	\$ 1,989,852
28	United Friends of the Children	\$	783,533	3/1/2024	12/18/2023	1/10/2024	8/13/2024	87,060	N/A	-					\$ 130,590	\$ 652,943
29	United States Veterans Initiative, Inc.	\$	229,119	N/A	12/15/2023	N/A	N/A	-	7/8/2024	51,520					\$ 51,520	\$ 177,599
30	Upward Bound House	\$	262,105	7/20/2002	1/22/2024	N/A	N/A	-	N/A	-					\$ 56,197	\$ 205,908
31	Valley Oasis (formerly Antelope Valley Domestic Violer	n \$	2,684,614	1/16/2024	12/15/2023	12/21/2023	N/A	450,012	10/28/2024	369,561					\$ 844,243	\$ 1,840,371
32	Volunteers of America of Los Angeles	\$	5,050,169	5/1/2024	12/18/2023	12/21/2023	8/13/2024	678,625	11/1/2024	678,625	1/6/2025	\$ 135,725.00			\$ 1,628,700	\$ 3,421,469
33	Weingart Center Association	\$	436,051	N/A	1/22/2024	3/18/2025	N/A	-	N/A	-					\$ -	\$ 436,051
34	Whitter Area First Day Coalition	\$	206,833	N/A	12/18/2023	12/29/2023	8/21/2024	23,000	11/18/2024	28,750					\$ 51,750	
	Tota	II \$	50,791,228					\$ 3,766,206		7,241,270		\$ 263,628		\$ 20,775	\$ 13,780,961	\$ 37,010,267

Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority Measure H Working Capital Advances and Recoupment Status Through March 4, 2025; Target Deadline March 2027

Ne	Service Provider	Total Advance Issued as of 7/8/2024 (a)	date of	Letter Issued Date	Letter Returned by Provider	Date of additional Recoupment through 1/29/25	Additional Recoupment amount since 12/31/24 as of 1/29/25 (f)		Additional Recoupment amount since 1/29/24 as of 3/4/2025	Total Recoupment (x) = (b) + (d) + (e) +(f)+(g)		vance Balance s of 3/4/2025
1	1736 Family Crisis Center	\$ 914,59	3 7/16/2024	12/18/2023	1/5/2024	11/8/2024	\$ 24,409.00			\$ 279,950	\$	634,643
2	211 LA County	\$ 73,93	8 11/3/2021	N/A	N/A					\$ 73,938	\$	-
3	Coalition for Responsible Community Development	\$ 268,42	1 N/A	12/15/2023	12/22/2024					\$ 67,500	\$	200,921
4	Community Partners fbo Safe Place For Youth	\$ 64,27	4 5/1/2024	12/18/2023	1/11/2024					\$ 8,925	\$	55,349
5	Covenant House California	\$ 491,46	8 7/3/2024	12/15/2023	12/20/2023	12/16/2024	\$ 13,652.00			\$ 150,172	\$	341,296
6	First to Serve	\$ 755,52	8 N/A	12/18/2023	1/9/2024					\$ 83,948	\$	671,580
7	Harbor Interfaith Services, Inc.	\$ 2,229,94	5 6/30/2019	12/18/2023	1/29/2024					\$ 318,949	\$	1,910,996
8	Hathaway-Sycamores Child and Family Services	\$ 1,128,93	7 N/A	12/15/2023	12/19/2023	12/2/2024	\$ 33,065.00			\$ 321,242	\$	807,695
9	Home at Last Community Development Corporation	\$ 797,68	1 N/A	12/18/2023	5/1/2024					\$ -	\$	797,681
10	Homeless Health Care LA	\$ 299,68	2 7/20/2024	1/11/2024	1/22/2024					\$ 5,344	\$	294,338
11	Hope of the Valley Rescue Mission	\$ 68,25	0 N/A	12/15/2023	1/9/2024					\$ 34,125	\$	34,125
12	Jovenes, Inc.	\$ 449,1	7 6/4/2024	12/18/2023	12/19/2024					\$ 114,043	\$	335,074
13	L.A. Family Housing Corporation	\$ 6,373,40	1 12/16/2023	1/12/2024	1/16/2024					\$ 1,870,761	\$	4,502,640
14	National Health Foundation	\$ 52,3	7 6/5/2024	12/18/2023	12/18/2023					\$ 52,317	\$	-
15	New Directions, Inc.	\$ 34,34	7 N/A	12/18/2023	N/A					\$ -	\$	34,347
16	People Assisting the Homeless	\$ 8,274,23	9 N/A	12/20/2023	7/2/2024					\$ 40,581	\$	8,233,658
17	Rainbow Services	\$ 118,3°	7 N/A	12/15/2023	1/24/2024					\$ -	\$	118,317
18	Sanctuary of Hope	\$ 344,88	4 3/20/2024	12/18/2023	1/19/2024					\$ 153,104	\$	191,780
19	Special Services For Groups, Inc.	\$ 6,674,33	5 4/23/2024	12/15/2023	1/10/2024					\$ 6,674,335	\$	-
20	St. Anne's Maternity Home	\$ 326,06	7 2/13/2024	12/18/2023	1/28/2024	1/6/2025	\$ 56,777.00			\$ 139,510	\$	186,557
21	St. Joseph's Center	\$ 2,930,30	0 5/15/2020	2/8/2024	2/28/2024					\$ 354,196	\$	2,576,104
22	Testimonial Community Love Center	\$ 388,68	4 N/A	1/11/2024	1/31/2024					\$ -	\$	388,684
23	The Midnight Mission	\$ 448,9	0 N/A	12/19/2023	N/A					\$ -	\$	448,950
24	The People Concern	\$ 3,812,08	7 N/A	12/18/2023	12/19/2023					\$ 49,389	\$	3,762,698
25	The Village Family Services	\$ 869,56	1 6/7/2024	12/15/2023	12/21/2023					\$ 159,653	\$	709,908
26	The Whole Child	\$ 914,42	6 N/A	1/22/2024	1/23/2024			2/26/2025	\$ 20,775	\$ 20,775	\$	893,651
27	Union Station Homeless Services	\$ 2,035,0	5 2/12/2024	12/15/2023	12/22/2023					\$ 45,203	\$	1,989,852
28	United Friends of the Children	\$ 783,53	3 3/1/2024	12/18/2023	1/10/2024					\$ 130,590	\$	652,943
29	United States Veterans Initiative, Inc.	\$ 229,1	9 N/A	12/15/2023	N/A					\$ 51,520	\$	177,599
30	Upward Bound House	\$ 262,10	5 7/20/2002	1/22/2024	N/A					\$ 56,197	\$	205,908
31	Valley Oasis (formerly Antelope Valley Domestic Violen	\$ 2,684,6	4 1/16/2024	12/15/2023	12/21/2023					\$ 844,243	\$	1,840,371
32	Volunteers of America of Los Angeles	\$ 5,050,16	9 5/1/2024	12/18/2023	12/21/2023	1/6/2025	\$ 135,725.00			\$ 1,628,700	\$	3,421,469
33	Weingart Center Association	\$ 436,0	1 N/A	1/22/2024	3/18/2025					\$ -	\$	436,051
34	Whitter Area First Day Coalition	\$ 206,83		12/18/2023	12/29/2023					\$ 51,750		155,083
	Total	\$ 50,791,22	8		<u> </u>		\$ 263,628		\$ 20,775	\$ 13,780,961	\$ 3	37,010,267